# 崇福校友会 章程

**Constitution of Chongfu Alumni** 



#### CONSTITUTION OF CHONGFU ALUMNI

#### Chapter 1 - Name

1. The society shall be known as "Chongfu Alumni", hereinafter referred to as the "Association".

# Chapter 2 - Place of Association

2. The Place of Business of the Association shall be at 170 Yishun Avenue 6, Singapore 768959 or such other addresses as may subsequently be decided upon by the Executive Committee and approved by the Registrar of Societies. The Association shall carry out its activities only in places and premises which have the prior written approval from the relevant authorities, where necessary.

#### Chapter 3 - Objects

- 3. The objects of the Association are:
  - to encourage friendly relationship amongst former students of Chongfu School;
  - to promote co-operation amongst members through sports, social and cultural activities;
  - c) To give support, pecuniary and otherwise, to any deserving project that is connected with the welfare of the Association; and
  - d) To give support and provide assistance to Chongfu School in aspects of its future development.

# Chapter 4 - Membership

- 4. a) Life Membership of the Association is open to all former students of Chongfu School. Only Life Members who are aged 21 years and above shall have the right to vote and elect and to hold office.
  - Associate Membership is open to all people who are not former students of Chongfu School but have shown a keen interest in giving support, pecuniary or otherwise, to any deserving project that is

connected with the welfare of the Association, who are law-abiding Singapore Citizens, irrespective of their sex, race and religion, having good character and abiding by the Constitution of the Association. The applicant shall, upon recommendation made by any two (2) members of the Executive Committee and upon approval granted by the Executive Committee, be admitted as an Associate Member. Except for the rights of to vote and elect and the rights to hold office, an Associate Member shall enjoy all the rights and privileges of the Life Members.

- c) Provided always that persons currently attending secondary schools, centralized institutes or junior colleges shall not be admitted as members of the Association.
- 5. A person wishing to join the Association should submit his name and particulars to the Secretary.
  - A) A new member must be proposed and seconded by existing members. The Executive Committee shall consider the application and make decision thereon as it may deem fit. The applicant will be duly informed by the Secretary as to the outcome of the application.
  - b) A copy of the Constitution of the Association shall be provided to every approved applicant.

# Chapter 5 - Entrance Fees, Subscriptions and Other Dues

- 6. Entrance fee of Singapore Dollars Five (S\$5.00) and membership subscription fee of Singapore Dollars Five Hundred (S\$500.00) shall be payable for Life Membership or Associate Membership (as the case may be) and the said fees shall be paid at the time of submission of the application. In the event of disapproval or the withdrawal of the application and notice of such withdrawal is duly received by the Executive Committee before its approval is made, the said fees will be refunded to the applicant.
- 7. The Executive Committee is empowered to make any change at any time as to the respective amounts of the entrance fee and/or membership subscription payable by the members as it may deem fit and necessary without the prior approval of the members in the General Meeting.
- 8. Members shall observe the Constitution of the Association, support resolutions of meetings and abide by the laws of Singapore. Should any member be found to have undermined the interest of the Association or

damaged the reputation of the Association, the matter shall be specially brought up at a General Meeting with a view of imposing penalty or canceling its membership. The decision of the General Meeting of members shall be final.

# Chapter 6 - Duties of Members

- 9. Members of the Association shall discharge the following duties:-
  - (i) To protect the interest of the Association and its members and to abide by the Constitution and resolutions of the Association.
  - (ii) To participate & assist in the progress & development of the Association affairs.

# Chapter 7 - Privileges of Members

- 10. All members of the Association shall enjoy the following privileges:-
  - (i) Members shall have the right of making proposal for the general progress of the Association.
  - (ii) Members shall have the right of requesting the Association for help or mediation in any disagreement arising among members, provided it is of a nature that does not violate the local laws.
  - (iii) Members shall have equal right to enjoy the privileges provided by the Association.

# Chapter 8 - Organisation

- 11. The Association shall form an Executive Committee consisting of not more than twenty (20) members to be elected at the Annual General Meeting. Provided that in the event that the number of the nominated candidates for election falls below twenty, all the nominated candidates shall be deemed elected forthwith and the balance of twenty shall be appointed by the Executive Committee.
- 12. The Executive Committee shall consist of:
  - · A Chairman,
  - · Three Vice-Chairmen,
  - · A Secretary and two Assistant Secretaries,
  - · A Treasurer and one Assistant Treasurer and

- · Eleven Ordinary Committee Members.
- 13. All Executive Committee Members of the Association shall be honorary.
- 14. The Executive Committee shall have discretion to decide on a panel of prominent public figures and to invite them to be Honorary Presidents of the Association on such terms and conditions as the Association may deem fit.

Should any Executive Committee Member resigns during the tenure of his office, his post shall be filled by the appointment of a member elected from amongst the voting members by the Executive Committee.

# Chapter 9 - Elections & Terms of Office

- 15. The term of office of the Executive Committee shall be for a period of three years.
- 16. Election shall be held at the Annual General Meeting before the 30th of April every three years.

# Chapter 10 - Meetings and Powers

17. Names for the above office posts shall be proposed by one member and seconded by another at the Annual General Meeting and election will follow on a simple majority vote of the members. Except for the Treasurer and the Assistant Treasurer, who shall not be re-elected and hold the office for more than two (2) terms, all the office-bearers may be re-elected.

The supreme authority of the Association is vested in a General Meeting of the members. Its powers are as follows:-

- (i) To decide on important matters of the Association.
- (ii) To elect and to dismiss the Executive Committee Members.
- (iii) To revise and amend Constitution.
- (iv) To examine the resolution and various reports of the Executive Committee as well as the annual financial receipts and expenditures.
- 18. The meeting of the Association shall be divided into 2 kinds as follows:
  - (i) General Meeting
  - (ii) Executive Committee Meeting

- 19. The Annual General Meeting shall be held once every year before the 30th of April to report on the past year's state of affairs of the Association and reports of its financial position should be given to all members at least 10 days before the meeting. The following matters, among others, will be considered at the Annual General Meeting:
  - (a) The previous financial year's accounts and annual report of the Executive Committee.
  - (b) Where applicable, the election of office-bearers and Auditor and Vice Auditor for the following term.
- 20. At other times, an Extraordinary General Meeting must be called by the Chairman on the request in writing of not less than 25 Life Members stating the reasons for it to the Executive Committee and may be called at anytime by order of the Executive Committee. The notice in writing shall be given to the Secretary setting forth the business that is to be transacted. The Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened within two (2) months from receiving this request to convene the Extraordinary General Meeting.
- 21. If the Executive Committee does not within two (2) months after the date of the receipt of the written request proceed to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting, the members who requested for the Extraordinary General Meeting shall convene the Extraordinary General Meeting by giving ten (10) days' notice to voting members setting forth the business to be transacted and simultaneously posting the agenda on the Association's notice board.
- 22. The Executive Committee Meeting shall be held not less than three (3) times a year to discuss matters for the general progress of the Association and to report on the financial receipts and expenditures.
- 23. The meeting for the handover of duties from the outgoing Executive Committee to the incoming Executive Committee shall be held within one (1) month after the election. During such meeting, the outgoing Executive Committee shall publicly examine and handover to the incoming Executive Committee the various receipts, books of accounts, documents, seal, cash etc and the incoming Executive Committee shall sign for them on the record book.
- 24. In convening the Annual General Meeting, a 14-days' written notice shall be given to the members prior to the meeting. In the case of the Extraordinary General Meeting, 7-day prior written notice shall be given to the members.

#### 25. Rules governing Meetings:

- (i) For the General Meeting, at least 25 Life Members present shall form a quorum.
- (ii) For the Executive Committee Meetings, at least 50% of the Committee Members must be present to form a quorum.
- (iii) The Chairman of the Executive Committee shall be ex-officio Chairman of all meetings. Should the Chairman be absent, the Executive Committee shall appoint another member to chair the meeting.
- (iv) In the event of there being no quorum present at the commencement of a General Meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned for 30 minutes from the scheduled time of the meeting. Should the number then present be still insufficient to form a quorum, those present should be considered a quorum, but they shall have no power to amend any part of the existing Constitution of the Association and to sell or dispose of the immovable properties of the Association.
- 26. Save as otherwise stated in this Constitution, the assent of more than half of those present shall decide matters. Should there be a tie, the Chairman shall have a casting vote.
- 27. Minutes of previous meetings shall be read at the meetings following and shall be signed and confirmed by the Chairman. If all agreed, no objection shall be raised thereafter.
- 28. Executive Committee shall hold at least nine (9) meetings during each term of three (3) years after giving ten-day notice in writing to Executive Committee Members for each meeting.

The powers of the Executive Committee are as follows:-

- (i) To carry out the resolutions of the General Meeting.
- (ii) To plan the general progress of the Association and to work out ways and means to proceed with the affairs of the Association.
- (iii) To examine the proposals submitted by members and to approve new members.
- (iv) To convene the General Meeting and all forms of Meeting.
- (v) To plan and control the expenditures of the Association. In the case, however, of a provisional expenditure involving more than \$10,000.00, approval shall first be obtained from the General Meeting before incurring same.
- (vi) To examine the estimates prepared by the Finance Section, the monthly financial receipts and expenditures, and the reports of the various Sections.

- 29. The duty of the Executive Committee is to organise and supervise the daily activities of the Association and to make decisions on matters affecting its running when the General Meeting is not sitting. It may not act contrary to the expressed wishes of the General Meeting without prior reference to it and shall always remain subordinate to the General Meetings.
- 30. The Executive Committee has power to authorise the expenditure of a sum not exceeding \$10,000.00 per month from the Association's funds for the Association's purposes.

#### Chapter 11 - Office-Bearers

- 31. The duties of the office-bearers are as follows:
  - The Chairman shall act as chairman at all general and Executive Committee Meetings. He/she shall also represent the Association in its dealings with outside persons.
  - b) The Vice-Chairmen shall assist and one of them shall deputise for the Chairman in the latter's absence.
  - c) The Secretary shall keep all records, except financial, of the Association and shall be responsible for their correctness. He/she will keep minutes of all General and Executive Committee Meetings. He/she shall maintain an up-to-date Register of membership.
  - d) The Assistant Secretary shall assist the Secretary in his/her duties. In the absence of the Secretary, the Assistant Secretary shall take over the duty.
  - e) The Treasurer shall keep all funds and disburse all moneys on behalf of the Association and shall keep an account of all monetary transactions and shall be responsible for their correctness. He/she is authorized to spend up to \$500.00 per month for petty expenses on behalf of the Association. He/she will not keep more than \$1,000.00 in the form of cash and money in excess of \$1,000.00 shall be deposited in a bank to be named by the Executive Committee. All expenses shall be approved by the Executive Committee by a simple majority. All cheques shall be signed by any two (2) of the three (3) office-bearers, namely, the Chairman, the Secretary and the Treasurer.
  - f) The Assistant Treasurer shall assist the Treasurer in his/her duties. In the absence of the Treasurer, the Assistant Treasurer shall take over the duty.
  - g) The Ordinary Committee Members shall be assigned with all other

- duties by the Executive Committee as it deems fit, to further the objects of the Association.
- h) Any member of the Executive Committee absenting himself/herself from three meetings consecutively without satisfactory explanations shall be deemed to have withdrawn from the Executive Committee, and a successor may be co-opted by the Executive Committee from the members to serve until the next Annual General Meeting. Any changes in the Executive Committee shall be notified to the Registrar of Societies within two (2) weeks of the change.

#### Chapter 12 - Audit

32. Two persons who are not members of the Executive Committee will be elected as Auditor and Vice Auditor at each Annual General Meeting and will hold office for one year only and may not be re-elected. The accounts of the Association shall be audited by a firm of Certified Public Accountants if the gross income or expenditure of the Association exceeds \$500,000 in that financial year, in accordance with Section 4 of the Societies Regulations. They will be required to audit each financial year's accounts and present a report upon them to the Annual General Meeting. They may be required by the Chairman to audit the Association's accounts for any period within their tenure of office at any date and make a report to the Executive Committee. The financial year shall be from the 1st day of January to the 31st day of December.

#### Chapter 13 - Property & Trust

- 33. The Executive Committee of property trustees shall be elected at a General Meeting, and its members shall not be more than 4 and in any case not-less than 2.
- 34. Unless with the assent of 3/4th of the voting membership present at a General Meeting, the immovable properties of the Association shall not be sold, used as security or transferred to others.
- 35. Should any of the trustees have any of the following shortcomings he shall automatically disqualify to be a trustee:-
  - (i) If declared officially as a bankrupt.
  - (ii) If mentally deranged.

- (iii) If convicted in court and sent to jail.
- (iv) If he leaves Singapore for a period of 12 months.
- 36. Should the number of trustees become less than 2 due to resignations, or deaths, or being disqualified, new trustee(s) shall be appointed to replace them at a General Meeting.

#### Chapter 14 - Procedure for Settlement of Disputes

- 37. a) Any Member who claims to have a grievance against the Association is entitled to request a special meeting with the Executive Committee to present his/her case. The Executive Committee shall endeavour to redress the grievance.
  - b) In the event of no settlement being arrived at with the Executive Committee, the aggrieved person may present his/her case to a General Meeting whose decision shall be final.

# Chapter 15 - Prohibitions

- 38. Gambling of any kind, excluding the promotion or conduct of a private lottery which has been permitted under the Private Lotteries Act Cap 250, is forbidden on the Association's premises. The introduction of materials for gambling or drug taking and of bad characters into the premises is prohibited.
  - (i) The funds of the Association shall not be used to pay the fines of members who have been convicted in Court.
  - (ii) The Association shall not engage in any trade union activity as defined in any written law relating to trade unions for the time being in force in Singapore.
  - (iii) The Association shall not hold any lottery, whether confined to its members or not, in the name of the Association or its office-bearers, Executive Committee or members.
  - (iv) The Association shall not indulge in any political activity or allow its funds and for premises to be used for political purposes.
  - (v) The Association shall not raise funds from the public for whatever purposes without the prior approval in writing of the Assistant Director Operations, Licensing Division, Singapore Police Force and other relevant authorities.

#### Chapter 16 - Amendments to Constitution

39. The Association shall not amend its Constitution without prior approval in writing of the Registrar of Societies. No alteration or addition/deletion to this Constitution shall be passed except at a General Meeting and with the consent of two-thirds (2/3) of the voting members present at the General Meeting.

# Chapter 17 - Interpretation of Constitution

40. In the event of any question or matter arising from any point which is not expressly provided for in the Constitution, the Executive Committee shall have power to use their own discretion. The decision of the Executive Committee shall be final unless it is reversed at a General Meeting of members.

#### Chapter 18 - Dissolution

- 41. The Association shall not be dissolved unless with the assent of more than 80% of the total voting membership present at a General Meeting convened for the purpose by votes.
- 42. Should this Association be dissolved in accordance with the preceding rule, the Association shall, after discharging all its legal liabilities, donate the remaining funds to Chongfu School.
- 43. A Certificate of dissolution shall be given within 7 days of the dissolution to the Registrar of Societies.

# 崇福校友会章程

#### 第一章 名称

1. 本会定名为"崇福校友会",此后简称"本会"。

#### 第二章 会址

2. 本会注册地址设于新加坡768959邮区,义顺第6道门牌170号。执行委员会可议决更改注册地址,但须获得社团注册官的批准。在必要情况下,举办会务活动的地点应事前得到有关当局的书面批准。

#### 第三章 宗旨

- 3. 本会宗旨为:
  - a) 促进校友之间的友谊;
  - b) 通过体育, 社交及文化活动, 促进校友间的团结与合作;
  - c) 以各种方式开展有益于社会福利及民生的活动;
  - d) 为崇福学校今后开展的活动与发展,尽力支持,给予赞助。

#### 第四章 会员

- 4. a) 凡崇福学校校友均可加入本会成为永久会员。永久会员年龄须达 21 岁或以上,方享有选举权、被选举权与担任职位权。
  - b)任何奉公守法,行为端正的新加坡公民,虽非崇福校友,但乐意参与及出钱出力支持本会各项福利活动,不论其性别、种族及信仰,并愿意遵守本会章程者,均可申请成为本会准会员。申请入会者,需要两位执委推荐并经执委会通过方为有效。准会员除了无选举权和被选举权之外,享有永久会员的一切权利。
  - c) 在籍的中学生,初级学院和高级中学学生不得成为本会会员。
- 5. 任何申请入会者,须向本会总务提交其姓名及个人履历之入会申请书。
  - a)任何新会员,须由会员提议及附议。执委会考虑其申请后将据情作出决定,并由总务通知申请者其申请结果。
  - b) 每位新会员, 可获得本会章程一份。

# 第五章 入会费,年捐及其他会捐

6. 永久会员与准会员均须缴交入会费及会员费;入会费每名新币伍元(S\$5.00),会员费每名新币伍佰元(S\$500.00),须在提交入会申请表格时一并呈交。被拒绝的

申请者或在执委会通过前提出退出申请者,皆能获得全数退款。

- 7. 执委会赋有权力,可酌情更改会员应缴交的入会费与/或会员费的款额,无须于事前获得会员大会的批准。
- 8. 会员须遵守本会章程,支持会议决议及遵守我国法律。任何会员被发现有行为不良,损坏本会名誉或利益之行动,则将提交大会据情定夺,给予处分或取消其会员资格。大会的决定为最终决定。

#### 第六章 会员义务

- 9. 会员须履行以下义务:-
  - (i) 维护校友会及其会员的利益,遵守本会章程与决议;
  - (ii) 参与及协助本会事务的进展和开发。

#### 第七章 会员权利

- 10. 所有会员均享有以下权利:-
  - (i) 为本会的进展,有权作出建议。
  - (ii) 会员之间,若有争执,有权要求本会协助或调解,惟争执性质需以不违反本 地法律为准。
  - (iii) 会员均有同等权利享用本会提供的优待。

#### 第八章 组织

- 11. 本会设执行委员会,由不超过20名会员组成,所有委员须由常年会员大会选出。 若被提名竞选的会员人数未达20名,彼等立即当选,其他不敷人数由组成的执行 委员会委任会员填补。
- 12. 全体执行委员会包括:

 •会长:
 一名
 •副会长:
 三名

 •总务:
 一名
 •副总务:
 二名

 •财政:
 一名
 •副财政:
 一名

• 普通执行委员: 十一名

- 13. 执行委员的职位全是名誉职位。
- 14. 执行委员会有斟酌权委任社会贤达为本会名誉会长,任期与条件以本会认为适当的为准。任何执委员若在任期内辞去其职务,执行委员会则须从当选委员间选出委员递补之。

#### 第九章 选举和任期

- 15. 执行委员会委员的任期每届三年。
- 16. 执行委员由常年会员大会选出,选举期间以三年一度,须于第三年届满前的四月 三十日以前举行。

#### 第十章 会议和最高权力机构

17. 所有执行委员,必须在常年会员大会上由一名会员提议及另一名附议,以简单多数票表决选出。正副财政二人,可连任两届,任满,不得被选连续三届担任同一职位,其他执委均可连选连任。

会员大会为本会最高权力机构, 其权力如下:-

- (i) 有权决定本会的重大事宜。
- (ii) 有权选举和免除执委员职务。
- (iii) 有权修改章程。
- (iv) 有权审阅执委会的决议与报告以及常年财务收支。
- 18. 本会会议计分以下二种:
  - (i) 会员大会会议
  - (ii) 执行委员会会议
- 19. 常年会员大会每年召开一次,须于四月三十日之前举行,报告一年的会务进展; 财政状况报告书应提前十日送交全体会员。常年会员大会除了其它事项,将特别 考虑下列事项:
  - a) 上一年度的财务报告及执委会的常年报告;
  - b) 若适合规定,选举下一届执行委员会委员,查账与副查账。
- 20. 临时会员大会须至少25名永久会员联署,并以书面说明请求理由,然后呈交执委会或执委会认为必要时得由主席召开。临时会员大会的通知书与议程须呈交给总务,并须于接到请求书后的两(2)个月内召开。
- 21. 若执委会接到请求书后的两(2)个月内不召开临时会员大会,提请会员在给予有投票权会员拾(10)天通知书说明提案,同时张贴议程在布告栏后,则可自行召开临时会员大会。
- 22. 执委会会议每年至少召开叁(3)次,讨论会务的进展与财务开支的报告。
- 23. 新旧执行委员会交接仪式须于执委员选举后的一(1)个月内举 行。移交的项目计有收据、账簿、文件、印章,现金等;各项目先由卸任执委员在会上公开点数,然后由新任委员在记录簿上签收。

24. 常年会员大会通知书,最少须于大会召开前两星期内寄发给会员;特别会员大会通知书则须最少于七天内寄发。

#### 25. 大会程序:

- (i) 会员大会至少须有25名永久会员出席方能构成法定人数。
- (ii) 执委会会议须有至少50%执委员出席方能构成法定人数。
- (iii) 执委会会长为所有会议的当然主席。遇主席缺席时,执委会须另委任会员充当会议主席。
- (iv) 有关会员大会召开时若未能达到法定人数,大会将延迟30分钟召开;之后如果法定人数仍然不足,则出席人数不论多寡,都可视为达到法定人数而召开有关会议,但无权更改、修正现有章程的任何条款,出售或处置本会的不动产。
- 26. 除非本章程另有规定,所有会议须有半数以上出席会议会员的同意方能决定问题。 凡遇表决票数相等时,主席有额外一票的投票权。
- 27. 上一期的会议记录在会上经会员审阅后,主席需签名复准。如果出席会员均表赞成,则事后不得提出异议。
- 28. 执委会在其三年的任期内,至少召开九次会议,并须于会议前十天通知全体执委。 执委会的职权如下:
  - (i) 执行大会的决议。
  - (ii) 策划本会的进展,通过各种方式督促执委会执行会务。
  - (iii) 审阅会员的提议,批准新会员入会。
  - (iv) 召开会员大会以及其他形式的会议。
  - (v) 筹划和控制本会的开支。凡临时开支数额超过\$10,000.00者,则须事前获得会员大会通过。
  - (vi) 审阅财务组准备的预算,每月的财务收支以及各组的报告。
- 29. 执行委员会的任务在于组织及监督日常会务的进行,并对有关事作出决定。执行委员执行会务时不得作出违反会员大会的决策。
- 30. 执行委员会有权批准每月开支不超过\$10,000.00的会务需求款额。

#### 第十一章 本会职员

- 31. 本会职员的职权如下:
  - a) 会长为所有会员大会及执行委员会会议的当然主席,并对外代表本会。
  - b) 副会长的职责为协助会长工作,并于会长缺席时代行其职务。

- c) 总务负责保管本会除财务以外的一切文件,并确保其正确性,且负责所有会员大会及执行委员会会议的记录以及保管会员登记簿。
- d) 副总务负责协助总务执行其职务,并在总务缺席时,代行其职。
- e) 财政负责掌管本会所有的收入与开支款项,负责正确地记入帐簿内。每月现金支付不得超过S\$500.00。财政手上的现金或存款不得超过S\$1000.00,超过的款项,则须存入由执委会所指定的银行户头。一切开支须经执委会简单多数委员批准,提款支票须有会长,总务,财政三职员中的两位职员签名方为有效。
- f) 副财政负责协助财政执行其职务,并在财政缺席时,代行其职。
- g) 普通执行委员可被执行委员会委任其他职务,以便共同促进本会会务的发展。
- h) 任何执行委员在无任何适当理由情况下,连续三次缺席会议者,均作自动辞职论。执行委员会有权另委任会员代替之,其任期至下一届常年会员大会为止。执行委员会中的职员更换,必须干两(2)个星期内呈报社团注册官。

#### 第十二章 查账

32. 每次常年大会将选出两名非执行委员为正副查账,任期一年,不得连任。若在该财政年度本会的总收入或开支超出\$500,000/=,根据社团法令第4节规定,其账目则须由特许会计师核查。查账任务为审查常年账目,以及向常年会员大会提呈报告,并依主席的指示,在其任期内,审查任何时期的账目,向执行委员会提呈报告。本会的财政年度始于每年一月一日,终于十二月三十一日。

#### 第十三章 财产信托人

- 33. 本会财产由执行委员会托管。信托人须由会员大会选出,其人数不得超过四名, 或少干二名。
- 34. 本会不动产非经会员大会出席会议有表决权之会员中的四份之三同意,不得将其变卖、典押或割让他人。
- 35. 信托人若有下列之事项,则自动失去其信托人之资格:
  - (i) 被法庭宣判破产者。
  - (ii) 精神失常者。
  - (iii) 被法庭惩治徒刑者。
  - (iv) 离新加坡连续十二个月之久者。
- 36. 若因有信托人辞职,逝世或失去其资格,信托人人数因而少于二,会员大会则须 另委任新信托人填补空缺。

# 第十四章 调解纠纷的程序

- 37.a) 任何会员若对本会有所异议,可召开特别执行委员会会议讨论,执行委员会 应设法消除异议。
  - b) 若执行委员会未能消除异议,有关会员可向会员大会提出。会员大会之决定 为最终决定。

# 第十五章 禁例

- 38. 本会会所内严禁一切赌博,唯根据私人彩票法令第250章所准予推销或经营的私人彩票不在此例。一切赌具或吸毒用具,或不正当人士,均在禁止之例,不准带入本会。
  - (i) 本会基金不得用于代会员支付法庭之罚款。
  - (ii) 本会不得参与任何现行法律所规定的一切职工会活动。
  - (iii) 本会不得以本会,执行委员会,执行委员或会员的名义发行任何彩票。
  - (iv) 本会不得参与任何政治活动,更不能动用本会基金和将会所充作政治活动之 用途。
  - (v) 若未得警察部队执照署助理行动局长以及其他相关部门书面批准, 本会不得 藉任何用途向公众人士筹募基金。

#### 第十六章 修改章程

39. 本会章程, 须事先获得社团注册官的书面批准, 否则不得予以修改。章程的任何修改或增删, 须获得出席会员大会的三分之二 (2/3)到会会员表决通过, 始得生效。

#### 第十七章 章程的解释

40. 若有任何事宜未有明文规定在本章程内者,本会执行委员会有权作出最后的决定。

#### 第十八章 解散

- 41. 本会不得自行解散,除非获得五分之四(80%)到会之会员在会上通过,才能解散。
- 42. 若根据以上规章解散获得通过,本会所负欠的一切合法债务必须清还,而剩余基金则捐献给崇福学校。
- 43. 本会若解散,必须于七天内向社团注册官呈交解散证书。

# 崇福校友会 Chongfu Alumni

170 Yishun Avenue 6 Singapore 768959 Tel: 6257 6656

Email: chongfualumni@yahoo.com.sg Wesite: www.chongfualumni.com

